
          

 

FELLSMERE  
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 

 

INDIAN RIVER COUNTY 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 8, 2022 

10:00 A.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.fellsmerewcd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

FELLSMERE 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 

109 North Willow Street 
Fellsmere, Florida 32948 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
September 8, 2022 

10:00 A.M. 
 
 

 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………...Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda 

E. Comments from the Public 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. July 14, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes………………………………………...............Page 2 

G. Old Business 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Approval and Ratification of Sonrise Ingress and Egress License…………………..Page 9 

2. Consider Approval of Services Agreement for Year 2022 Right-of-Way Mowing…………...Page 21 

3. Consider Resolution NO. 2022-12 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting Schedule….Page 28 

I. Administrative Matters 

1. Financials……………………………………………………………………………………….Page 30 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 



Miscellaneous Notices
Published in St. Lucie News Tribune on December 3, 2021

Location
St. Lucie County, Florida

Notice Text
NOTICE There will be a public meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the FELLSMERE WATER CONTROL DISTRICT at the
District office, 109 North Willow Street, P.O. Box 438, Fellsmere, Florida 32948 at 10:00 a.m. the second Thursday of the
following months for the year of 2022. January 13, 2022, March 10, 2022, Landowner's Meeting May 12, 2022, July 14, 2022,
September 8, 2022, November 10, 2022. A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing to the Secretary. If a person
decides to appeal any decision made by the board, with respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he
will need a record of the proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he will to ensure that a verbatim record of the
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. Anyone who
needs a special accommodation for this meeting may contact the district office at (772)571-0640 at least 48 hours in
advance of meeting. Pub: Dec 3, 27, 2021 TCN4996845

Page 1



 

Page 1 of 7 
 

 
FELLSMERE WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
JULY 14, 2022 

 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The Regular Board Meeting of the Fellsmere Water Control District (“District”) of July 14, 2022, was 
called to order at 10:01 a.m. in the District office located at 109 North Willow Street, Fellsmere, Florida 
32948. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that showed notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been 
published in the St. Lucie News Tribune on December 3, 2021, as legally required.   
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
Mr. Sakuma stated that the attendance of Supervisors Richard Carnell and Rodney Tillman constituted 
a quorum and it was in order for the meeting to proceed.  Supervisor Greg Nelson listened by phone, 
however he did not participate in the meeting. 
 
Also in attendance were: District Manager Frank Sakuma of Special District Services, Inc., District 
Engineer George Simons P.E. of Carter Associates and Mark D. Mathes, Fellsmere City Manager.  
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
Staff requested (1) item under “New Business.” 
 
1 – (New Business/H-19) Secondary Drainage Connections  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Tillman, seconded by Mr. Carnell and passed unanimously adopting the 
agenda, as amended.  
 
 E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

1. May 12, 2022, Annual Meeting 

Mr. Simons asked for the following to be stricken from the minutes: “George will not allow the pipe 
under Broadway and Ditch 14 to be larger than what it is.”  
 
The May 12, 2022, Annual Meeting minutes were approved, as amended, on a motion made by Mr. 
Carnell, seconded by Mr. Tillman and the motion passed unanimously.  
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 
 

Page 2



 

Page 2 of 7 
 

There were Old Business matters to come before the Board. 
     
H. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider Approval of Amendment to our Management Contract 
 
Mr. Sakuma presented the Board with a draft management contract with Special District Services, Inc. 
(SDS) and noted the cost for Task 6 would be $500, not $4,000.   
 
After Board discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Carnell, seconded by Mr. Tillman and passed 
unanimously approving the SDS management contract with the noted correction to the cost of Task 6. 
 

2. Discussion Regarding Retaining Attorney  
 

Mr. Carnell updated the Board on efforts to retain legal counsel for the District.  After Board discussion, 
a motion was made by Mr. Tillman, seconded by Mr. Carnell and passed unanimously authorizing the 
President to retain legal counsel for the District, and if retained, to bring forward an engagement letter 
to the next meeting for approval and ratification. 
 

3. Project Status on East Boundary CR 512 Regional Roadway in the City of Fellsmere  
 

Mark D. Mathes, Fellsmere City Manager, updated the Board on several efforts underway and planned 
for the City of Fellsmere and answered questions from the Supervisors about District coordination among 
the projects: 
 

 New York Ditch Grant Funded Project; 
 South Regional Lake; 
 97th Street Project; 
 Lincoln Street (future); 
 Stormwater Greenway – Kentucky/Willow/Broadway.  

 
The Board thanked Mr. Mathes for his attendance and for the updates and discussion. 
 

4. Consider Resolution No. 2022-01 – Re-Designating a Registered Agent and Primary 
Administrative Office 

 
Mr. Sakuma presented Resolution No. 2022-01, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE FELLSMERE 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT RE-DESIGNATING A REGISTERED AGENT 
AND REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE DISTRICT, AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
After Board discussion a motion was made by Mr. Carnell, seconded by Mr. Tillman and 
passed unanimously adopting Resolution 2022-01, as presented. 

 
5. Consider Resolution No. 2022-02 – Re-Designating Local Records Office 

 

Page 3



 

Page 3 of 7 
 

Mr. Sakuma presented Resolution No. 2022-02, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE FELLSMERE 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT RE-DESIGNATING THE LOCATION OF 
THE LOCAL DISTRICT RECORDS OFFICE AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
After Board discussion a motion was made by Mr. Tillman, seconded by Mr. Carnell and 
passed unanimously adopting Resolution 2022-02, as presented. 

 
6. Consider Resolution No. 2022-03 – Adopting Records Retention Policy 

 
Mr. Sakuma presented Resolution No. 2022-03, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE FELLSMERE 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT PROVIDING FOR THE APPOINTMENT OF 
A RECORDS MANAGEMENT LIAISON OFFICER; PROVIDING THE 
DUTIES OF THE RECORDS MANAGEMENT LIAISON OFFICER; 
ADOPTING A RECORDS RETENTION POLICY; AND PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
After Board discussion a motion was made by Mr. Tillman, seconded by Mr. Carnell and passed 
unanimously adopting Resolution 2022-03, as presented. 
 

7. Consider Resolution No. 2022-04 – Adopting Legal Defense Policy 
 
Mr. Sakuma presented Resolution No. 2022-04, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-04 
 

A RESOLUTION SETTING FORTH THE POLICY OF THE FELLSMERE 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WITH REGARD 
TO THE SUPPORT AND LEGAL DEFENSE OF THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS, DISTRICT OFFICERS, AND RETAINED STAFF; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
After Board discussion a motion was made by Mr. Tillman, seconded by Mr. Carnell and passed 
unanimously adopting Resolution 2022-04, as presented. 
 

8. Consider Resolution No. 2022-05 – Authorizing Secretary to Execute Plats, Permits 
and Conveyances 

 
Mr. Sakuma presented Resolution No. 2022-05, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-05 
 

Page 4



 

Page 4 of 7 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE FELLSMERE 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT GRANTING THE CHAIRPERSON THE 
AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY 
CONVEYANCE AND DEDICATION DOCUMENTS, PLATS AND OTHER 
DOCUMENTS RELATED TO THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE DISTRICT’S 
IMPROVEMENTS; APPROVING THE SCOPE AND TERMS OF SUCH 
AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
After Board discussion, it was determined that this resolution was not appropriate at this time. 
 

9. Consider Resolution No. 2022-06 – Adopting Alternative Investment Guidelines 
 
Mr. Sakuma presented Resolution No. 2022-06, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 4DISTRICT 
ADOPTING THE ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENT GUIDELINES FOR 
INVESTING PUBLIC FUNDS IN EXCESS OF AMOUNTS NEEDED TO MEET 
CURRENT OPERATING EXPENSES, IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 
218.415(17), FLORIDA STATUTES, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
After Board discussion a motion was made by Mr. Tillman, seconded by Mr. Carnell and passed 
unanimously adopting Resolution 2022-06, as presented. 
 

10.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-07 – Adopting Prompt Payment Policy 
 
Mr. Sakuma presented Resolution No. 2022-07, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-07 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE FELLSMERE 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT ADOPTING PROMPT PAYMENT POLICIES 
AND PROCEDURES PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 218, FLORIDA STATUTES; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Tillman noted the payments of the District may need to include a “warrant”, and SDS should 
investigate that requirement further. After Board discussion a motion was made by Mr. Tillman, 
seconded by Mr. Carnell and passed unanimously adopting Resolution 2022-07, as presented. 
 

11. Consider Resolution No. 2022-08 – Approving Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement 
 
Mr. Sakuma presented Resolution No. 2022-08, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE FELLSMERE 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT, INDIAN RIVER COUNTY, STATE OF 
FLORIDA, APPROVING THE FLORIDA STATEWIDE MUTUAL AID 

Page 5



 

Page 5 of 7 
 

AGREEMENT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
After Board discussion a motion was made by Mr. Tillman, seconded by Mr. Carnell and passed 
unanimously adopting Resolution 2022-08, as presented. 
 

12. Consider Resolution No. 2022-09 – Adopting Travel Reimbursement Policy 
 
Mr. Sakuma presented Resolution No. 2022-09, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE FELLSMERE 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT ADOPTING A POLICY FOR REIMBURSEMENT 
OF DISTRICT TRAVEL EXPENSES; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Carnell asked that staff confirm the reimbursement rate and make any adjustments to the approved 
resolution, if adopted.  After Board discussion a motion was made by Mr. Tillman, seconded by Mr. 
Carnell and passed unanimously passed adopting Resolution 2022-09 with the provision to adjust the 
reimbursement rate to conform to current Florida laws. 
 

13. Authorization to Issue RFP for Auditing Services 
 
Mr. Sakuma explained to the Board that SDS recommended the current financial auditor be retained 
for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2022, and that an RFP for auditing services be noticed in the 
next fiscal year.  After Board discussion, it was determined to bring this matter before the Board in the 
next fiscal year.  
 

14. Designation of Board of Supervisors as Audit Committee 
 
No Board action was taken on this item. 
 

15. Consider Authorization to Obtain General Liability and Public Officers Insurance 
 
Mr. Sakuma explained that SDS recommended seeking competitive insurance coverage for the District. 
After Board discussion a motion was made by Mr. Carnell, seconded by Mr. Tillman and passed 
unanimously authorizing SDS to seek competitive insurance coverage for the District. 
 

16. Consider Resolution No. 2022-10 – Adopting Internal Control Policy 
 
Mr. Sakuma presented Resolution No. 2022-10, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-10 
 

A RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE FELLSMERE 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT ADOPTING AN INTERNAL CONTROLS 
POLICY CONSISTENT WITH SECTION 218.33, FLORIDA STATUTES; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

Page 6



 

Page 6 of 7 
 

After Board discussion a motion was made by Mr. Tillman, seconded by Mr. Carnell and passed 
unanimously adopting Resolution 2022-10, as presented. 
 

17. Consider Resolution No. 2022-11 – Establishing CDD Checking Account Signers 
 
Mr. Sakuma presented Resolution No. 2022-11, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-11 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE FELLSMERE 
WATER CONTROL DISTRICT DIRECTING SPECIAL DISTRICT 
SERVICES, INC. TO ESTABLISH A LOCAL BANK ACCOUNT AT PNC 
BANK FOR THE DISTRICT AND APPOINT TODD WODRASKA, JASON 
PIERMAN, PATRICIA LASCASAS, FRANK SAKUMA AND 
____________________ AS SIGNERS ON THE ACCOUNT AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
After Board discussion, a motion was made by Mr. Carnell, seconded by Mr. Tillman and passed 
unanimously adopting Resolution 2022-11 with the addition of Jerry R. Tillman as an authorized 
signer on the account.  
 

18. Consider Approval of Non-Exclusive Ingress, Egress, and Access Easement and Use 
Agreement 

 
Thomas C. Nash, II, Esq. joined by phone in support of his request for an access easement through 
District property.  After discussion amongst the Board and Mr. Nash, the Board denied the request.  
Mr. Sakuma was directed to send a copy of an earlier approved Sonrise permit and a permit application 
form to Mr. Nash.  
 

19. Secondary Drainage Connections to the District  
 
Mr. Simons explained that the retirement of District staff, combined with a change in the management 
of the District, required an increase in Engineering time and costs.  After Board discussion with Mr. 
Mathes and staff, it was suggested an increase to $250 in minimum permit application fees would be 
appropriate.  In addition, the Board would work with staff in several suggested edits to the permit to 
better communicate to applicants the expected costs of permit review, tracking and inspections.  A 
motion was made by Mr. Tillman, seconded by Mr. Carnell and passed unanimously to increase the 
minimum permit application fee to $250.00, and for further revisions to the permit language be 
developed as discussed.  
 
I.      ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS  
 

1. Manager’s Report 
 

Mr. Sakuma had no further report for the Board.  
 

2. Attorney’s Report 
 
Not applicable.  
 

3. Engineer’s Report 

Page 7



 

Page 7 of 7 
 

 
Mr. Simons confirmed to the Board that FWCD had submitted their 20-Year Stormwater Needs 
Analysis, as required by law. 
 
Mr. Simons advised on the status of the John Brown and Sons permit, which is in process.  
 

4. Financial Report 
 
Mr. Sakuma advised that the financial records of the District were still being transferred and reviewed 
by SDS, and that a financial report would be included in future Board packages.  
 
J. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
There were no further comments from the Board.  
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Carnell adjourned the meeting at 12:39 
p.m. 
 

 
 
________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   President/Vice-President 
 
 

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



 

 

 

September 8, 2022 

 

TO: Supervisors of Fellsmere Water Control District 

FROM: Frank Sakuma, District Manager 

RE: 2022 Annual Mowing of District Rights-of-Way 

 

Two vendors were solicited to provide pricing for the mowing of the District Rights-of-Way in 2022. 
Following are responses for mowing a single time, or twice in the next year: 

 

Cates Tractor:  

Single Mow: $33,600.00 

Two Mows: $28,000.00 per Mow (total of $56,000 per year) 

 

A Quality Bushog: 

Single Mow: $18,800.00 

Two Mows: $18,800.00 per Mow (total of $37,600 per year) 

 

Based on the responses, staff recommends the Board consider entering into a services contract with A 
Quality Bushog for a single mow, at a costs of $18,800. This vendor came in at a lower cost, and if we 
need to have a second Mow in the year, we can do so with the same cost. 

 

  

Page 21



Services Contract 
 

 This Contract entered into this ___ day of September, 2022, is between A Quality 
Bushog Services, Inc. (“Independent Contractor”), and Fellsmere Water Control 
District (“District”). 
 
I. Duties of Independent Contractor:  The Independent Contractor shall furnish the 
equipment and perform the labor necessary for the Year 2022 Right-of-Way Mowing and 
Hedging/Clearing of District Rights of Way, per attached Exhibit A. 
 
II. Term; Entire Agreement:  This Contract will be for a period of 1 year, 
commencing on the date entered into unless terminated in writing by either party in 
accordance with the termination provisions of Section V hereof.  This Contract constitutes 
the entire agreement between the parties with respect to its subject matter and supersedes 
all prior oral or written agreements between the parties.  Changes, including changes in 
price and cost, are ineffective unless properly authorized, signed, and delivered in writing 
by both parties as an addendum to this Contract. 
 
III.    Compensation:  District agrees to pay Independent Contractor as compensation for 
the performance of the duties of the Independent Contractor under this Contract.  The 
compensation shall be up to $18,800.00.  Invoices for services will be payable within the 
time limits and other requirements set forth in the Florida Local Government Prompt 
Payment Act, Part VII of chapter 218, Florida Statutes. 
 
IV. Basic Understanding of the Parties:  The parties acknowledge and agree that the 
District is a local government with a specialized single purpose of providing infrastructure.  
All of the work of the District is subject to public records, government-in-the-sunshine and 
related requirements.  The parties understand that because the District is a local government 
certain requirements and limitations apply that would not apply to a private entity.  The 
services provided by the Independent Contractor under this Contract are rendered to the 
District as an independent contractor and nothing in this Contract shall create an 
employer/employee, partnership, joint venture, or principal/agent relationship between the 
parties. 
 
V. Termination:  This Contract may be terminated with or without cause at any time 
by either party upon thirty (30) days prior written notice, delivered by first class U.S. mail 
or electronic mail transmission to the address of the other party as set forth in the signature 
blocks below, in which event all unaccrued rights, duties and obligations of the parties 
hereto shall terminate forthwith. 
  

Page 22



 2 

VI. Other Related Provisions and Requirements: 
 

(a) Work Standard.  Work shall be performed professionally in accordance with 
generally accepted standards of the trade or business. 

 
(b) Insurance.  Independent Contractor shall provide evidence of general liability 

insurance and property damage insurance naming the District and Special 
District Services, Inc. as co-insured; and Workmen’s Compensation insurance 
with limits not less than Florida statutory requirements. 

 
(c) Reimbursement for Negligent Damage.  Independent Contractor shall 

reimburse the District for damages by Independent Contractor to personal 
and/or real property due to negligence of the Independent Contractor. 

 
(d) Time of the Essence.  The Independent Contractor recognizes that time is of the 

essence due to the specialized single purpose of the District. 
 

(e) Disputes; Interpretation; Opportunity to Consult Counsel; Venue.  Any 
controversies arising under this Contract that cannot be resolved by the parties 
shall be subject either to mediation and if mediation fails then legal action may 
be instituted and any prevailing party shall be entitled to be reimbursed for all 
court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees incident to such legal action.  All 
interpretations of this Contract shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Florida.  Each party has had ample opportunity to seek the advice of legal 
counsel prior to entering this Contract, which shall not be construed against the 
party responsible for drafting the instrument.  In the event it is necessary for 
either party to initiate legal action regarding this Contract, venue shall be in the 
Nineteenth Judicial Circuit, in and for Indian River County, Florida, for claims 
under state law, and in the Southern District of Florida for claims justiciable in 
federal court. 

 
(f) Alternate Services if Breach.  If the Independent Contractor ceases work or 

otherwise breaches this Contract the District has the authority without penalty 
direct or indirect to contract for the relevant services to be performed by other 
independent contractors given the nature and specialized single purpose of the 
District that infrastructure be constructed, acquired and maintained timely at 
sustained levels of quality over the long term. 

 
(g) Indemnification.  Independent Contractor agrees forever to indemnify and hold 

harmless the District, Special District Services, Inc., and their respective 
officers, employees, and agents of and from all losses, liabilities, damages, 
claims, actions, legal proceedings, settlements, judgments, recoveries, costs, 
and expenses because of or resulting from loss of, or damage to, property, or 
injury to or deaths of persons in any way arising out of or in connection with 
the performance of this Contract and attributable to the negligence or other 
wrongful conduct of the Independent Contractor or its employees, agents, or 

Page 23



 3 

subcontractors, including but not limited to any loss or action resulting from the 
failure of the Independent Contractor to comply with the its obligations under 
this Contract. 

 
(h) Severability.  The terms of this Contract shall be severable such that, if any term 

is determined to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, such holding shall not 
affect the viability of any of the other provisions of the Contract, unless the 
severing of such item would defeat the purpose of this Contract. 

 
(i) Waiver.  No delay or failure on the part of any party in exercising any right, 

power, or privilege under this Contract shall impair any such right, power, or 
privilege or be construed as a waiver or acquiescence; nor shall any single or 
partial exercise of any right, power, or privilege preclude any other or further 
exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, or privilege.  No 
waiver shall be valid against any party unless made in writing and signed by the 
party against whom enforcement of the waiver is sought and then only to the 
extent expressly specified in such writing. 

 
(j) Sovereign Immunity.  Notwithstanding any other term of this Contract, the 

District intends to avail itself of the benefits of Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, 
and of other statutes and common law governing sovereign immunity.  In no 
event will the District's liability exceed the monetary limits set forth in Section 
768.28, Florida Statutes.  Nothing in this Contract (1) is intended to inure to the 
benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim that would 
otherwise be barred under the doctrine of sovereign immunity or by operation 
of law or (2) shall be construed as consent by an agency or political subdivision 
of the State of Florida to be sued by third parties in any manner arising out of 
any contract. 

 
(k) Execution; Successors and Assigns.  This Contract may be executed in 

counterparts (including by facsimile or other electronic imaging), any one of 
which shall be deemed an original and all of which collectively shall be deemed 
a single instrument. This Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit 
of the parties and their respective officers, directors, agents, employees, 
administrators, trustees, executors, receivers, successors, assignees and legal 
representatives, whether or not a signatory to this Contract. 

 
(l) Verification of Employment Status.  The Independent Contractor shall bear full 

responsibility for verifying the employment status, under the Immigration 
Reform and Control Act of 1986, of all persons the Independent Contractor 
employs in the performance of this Contract.  In furtherance of this requirement, 
the Independent Contractor shall (1) register with and use the United States 
Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment 
eligibility of all new employees hired by the Independent Contractor during the 
term of this Contract, and (2) if the Independent Contractor enters into an 
agreement with a subcontractor during the term of this Contract, (i) obtain from 

Page 24



 4 

the subcontractor an affidavit stating that the subcontractor does no employ, 
contract with, or subcontract with an “unauthorized alien,” as that term is 
defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes, and (ii) maintain a copy of 
such affidavit for the duration of this Contract. 

 
(m) Public Records.  The Independent Contractor shall allow public access to all 

documents, papers, letters, or other material subject to the provisions of 
Florida’s Public Records Law, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and made or 
received by the Independent Contractor in conjunction with this Contract.  The 
Independent Contractor acknowledges that the designated public records 
custodian for the District is Special District Services, Inc. 

 
PUBLIC RECORDS NOTICE:  IF THE INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR HAS 
QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA 
STATUTES, TO ITS DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO 
THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS FOR 
THE DISTRICT, SPECIAL DISTRICT SERVICES, INC., AT 561-630-4922, 2501A 
BURNS ROAD, PALM BEACH GARDENS, FLORIDA 33410. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of 
the date first above written. 
 
Fellsmere Water Control  A Quality Bushog Services, 
District Inc. 
c/o Special District Services, Inc. 6426 Apache Blvd 
2501A Burns Rd.      Loxahatchee, FL 33470 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410   Phone: (561) 333-7777 
Phone: (561) 630-4922     
 
         
By: ________________________________  By:  __________________________ 
 
Title: _______________________________  Title:  ________________________ 
 
Date: ______________________________ Date:   _______________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 25



Fellsmere Water Control District

Lateral U to Park Lateral Total Lineal Miles 58.1

Street Miles Feet Per Mile 5280
117 1.5
115 1.5 Total Lineal Feet 306768 "A"
113 1.5
111 1.5 # of Passes Avg. 2.5
109 1.5 Width Per Pass 4.5
107 1 Average Width to Mow 11.25 "B"
101 1

97 0.75 Square Feet  A x B 3451140
95 1.5
93 1.5 Square Feet per Acre 43560
91 1.5
89 1.5 Mowed Acres 79.23
87 1.5
85 1.5 Rate Per Acre Mowed 237.29$       

Shrimp Factory 1.5
Total Miles 20.75 Price Per Mow 18,800.00$ 

Park Lateral to East Boundary

Street Miles
117 0.5
115 0.5
113 1
111 1
109 1
107 1.1
105 1.25
103 2
101 2

99 1.25
97 1.75

D15 2
93 2
91 2.25
89 2.25

89 2nd side 1
87 2.25
85 2.25
83 2.25
81 2.25
79 2.25

79 2nd side 1
77 2.25

Total Miles 37.35

Page 26



Page 27



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-12 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
FELLSMERE WATER CONTROL DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A 
REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 
AND SETTING THE TIME AND LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT 
MEETINGS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Fellsmere Water Control District ("District") to 

establish a regular meeting schedule for fiscal year 2022/2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District has set a regular meeting schedule, 

location and time for District meetings for fiscal year 2022/2023 which is attached hereto and 

made a part hereof as Exhibit “A”. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

OF THE FELLSMERE WATER CONTROL DISTRICT, INDIAN RIVER COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby adopted. 

 
Section 2. The regular meeting schedule, time and location for meetings for fiscal 

year 2022/2023 which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted and authorized to be 

published. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 8th day of September, 2022. 

 

 
ATTEST: FELLSMERE WATER 
 CONTROL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By:                                                                       By:                
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 28



FELLSMERE WATER CONTROL DISTRICT FISCAL 
YEAR 2022/2023 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the Fellsmere Water 
Control District (the “District”) will hold Regular Board Meetings (the “Meeting” or “Meetings”) at 
the District offices located at 109 North Willow Street, Fellsmere, Florida 32948 at 10:00 a.m. on the 
following dates: 

 
November 10, 2022 
January 12, 2023 
March 09, 2023 
May 11, 2023 
July 13, 2023 

September 14, 2023 
 
The purpose of the meetings is to conduct any business coming before the Board.   Meetings are open 
to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law.   Copies of the 
Agendas for any of the meetings may be obtained from the District’s website 
www.fellsmerewatercontroldistrict.com or by contacting the District Manager at 772-345-5119 
or by email  at bsakuma@sdsinc.org and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 prior to the date of the 
particular meeting. The Meetings are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the 
provisions of Florida law for special districts. The Meetings may be continued to a date, time 
and place to be specified on the record at the Meeting. 

 
From time to time one or two Supervisors may participate by telephone; therefore, a speaker telephone 
may be present at the meeting location so that Supervisors may be fully informed of the discussions 
taking place. Said meeting(s) may be continued as found necessary to a time and place specified on 
the record. 

 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at these 
meetings, such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to insure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made at his or her own expense and which record includes 
the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 

 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special 
accommodations or an interpreter to participate at any of these meetings should contact the 
District Manager at 772-345-5119 and/or toll free at 1-877-737-4922 at least seven (7) days prior to 
the date of the particular meeting. 

 
Meetings may be cancelled from time to time without advertised notice. 

 
FELLSMERE WATER CONTROL DISTRICT 

 
www.fellsmerewatercontroldistrict.com 
 
PUBLISH: INDIAN RIVER PRESS JOURNAL XX/XX/22 

Page 29



Page 30


	Fellsmere Water Control District - September 8, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	July 14, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Approval and Ratification of Sonrise Ingress and Egress License
	Consider Approval of Services Agreement for Year 2022 Right-of-Way Mowing
	Consider Resolution NO. 2022-12 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting Schedule
	Financials




